## 8 DECEMBER 2021

## **NEW FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL**

## PLANNING COMMITTEE

Minutes of a meeting of the Planning Committee held on Wednesday, 8 December 2021

\* Cllr Christine Ward (Chairman) \* Cllr Christine Hopkins (Vice-Chairman)

## **Councillors:**

\* Sue Bennison\* Hilary Brand

\* Anne Corbridge

\* Ann Bellows

\* Kate Crisell

\* Arthur Davis

\* Allan Glass

\* Barry Dunning

\* David Hawkins

## **Councillors:**

- Maureen Holding
  Mahmoud Kangarani
  - \* Joe Reilly
  - \* Barry Rickman
  - \* Tony Ring
  - \* Ann Sevier
  - Beverley Thorne
  - \* Malcolm Wade

\*Present

## In attendance:

Councillors:

Councillors:

**Diane Andrews** 

Andrew Gossage

## **Officers Attending:**

Ian Austin, Vivienne Baxter, James Gilfillan, Richard Natt, Claire Upton-Brown and Karen Wardle

## **Apologies**

Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Kangarani.

## 23 MINUTES

## **RESOLVED:**

That the minutes of the meeting held on 10 November 2021 be agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

## 24 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Cllr Corbridge disclosed a non-pecuniary interest in application 21/10938 as a member of Lymington and Pennington Town Council which had commented on the application. She concluded that there were no grounds under common law to prevent her from remaining in the meeting to speak and to vote.

Cllr Dunning disclosed a non-pecuniary interest in application 21/10938 as a member of Lymington and Pennington Town Council which had commented on the

application. He reported that he had spoken on the application at the Town Council meeting and therefore he did not participate in the debate or vote on the application. Cllr Dunning addressed the Committee as a Ward Councillor and was present during the consideration of the item.

Cllr Glass disclosed a non-pecuniary interest in application 21/11219 as a member of Fawley Parish Council which had commented on the application. He concluded that there were no grounds under common law to prevent him from remaining in the meeting to speak and to vote.

Cllr Hawkins disclosed a non-pecuniary interest in application 21/11230 as a member of the Planning Committee of New Milton Town Council which had commented on the application. Cllr Hawkins did not participate in the debate or vote on the application but was present during the consideration of the item.

Cllr Ring disclosed a non-pecuniary interest in application 21/11170 as a member of the Planning Committee of Ringwood Town Council. Cllr Ring reported that he had not expressed a view on the application and therefore concluded there were no grounds under common law to prevent him from remaining in the meeting to speak and to vote.

Cllr Ward disclosed a non-pecuniary interest in application 21/11230 as a member of New Milton Town Council which had commented on the application. She concluded that there were no grounds under common law to prevent her from remaining in the meeting to speak and to vote.

## 25 PLANNING APPLICATIONS FOR COMMITTEE DECISION

## a Former Police Station, Southampton Road, Lymington (Application 21/10938)

**Details:** 

Demolition of existing building and redevelopment of the site to form 32no. Retirement apartments including communal facilities, access, car parking and landscaping

## **Public Participants:**

Stuart Goodwill, Planning Issues Ltd (Agent) Don Mackenzie, The Lymington Society (Objector) Cllr Andy Ash-Vie, Lymington and Pennington Town Council Cllr Barry Dunning, Lymington Town Ward Cllr

## **Additional Representations:**

None

## Comment:

Cllr Corbridge disclosed a non-pecuniary interest as a member of Lymington and Pennington Town Council which had commented on the application. She concluded that there were no grounds under common law to prevent her from remaining in the meeting to speak and to vote. Cllr Dunning disclosed a non-pecuniary interest as a member of Lymington and Pennington Town Council which had commented on the application. He reported that he had spoken on the application at the Town Council meeting and therefore he did not participate in the debate or vote on the application. Cllr Dunning addressed the Committee as a Ward Councillor and was present during the consideration of the item.

The Case Officer reported that following the Committee's resolution to defer the application, a viability assessment had been carried out of the proposed development which had concluded that the maximum viable off site affordable housing contribution was £970,000. This revised figure had been accepted by the applicant. Details of this had been included in the update note circulated prior to the meeting.

Members of the Committee expressed views raising concerns that the application did not meet the housing need in the area and therefore the development would not create a mixed and balanced community, that the scale and massing of the proposal was inappropriate and would not deliver a sustainable form of development. In addition, views were expressed that the development would undermine the future health and growth of the protected trees within the site, that there was inadequate parking provision and turning space and a lack of adequate amenity space which would impact on the health and wellbeing of future residents.

## **Decision:**

Refuse

## **Reasons for Refusal:**

- 1 The proposed development would not deliver sustainable development and not create a mixed or balanced community and is thereby contrary to local plan policy HOU1 of the Local Plan 2016-2036 Part One: Planning Strategy which seeks to create a mixed and balanced community by providing a mix and choice of homes by type, size, tenure and cost.
- 2 The proposed development is of a scale and mass that is considered to be inappropriate and out of keeping with the area resulting in an adverse impact on the character of the surrounding area and the existing character of the adjacent Conservation Area. In these respects the proposal is considered discordant with local plan policy ENV3 of the Local Plan 2016-2036 Part One: Planning Strategy and saved policy DM1 of the Local Plan Part 2: Sites and Development Management.
- 3 The proposed development, by reason of the proximity of the proposed apartments to the maturing protected trees on site, would not allow for these trees to grow into their natural size and form. This is likely to result in the future unsympathetic pruning and potential loss of these trees which would be detrimental to the amenity of the area.
- 4 The proposal makes insufficient provision for on-site parking to serve

the development and inadequate turning on site to enable emergency service vehicles to turn on site and leave in forward gear. The development is likely to lead to additional pressure on on-street parking within the surrounding local area, to the detriment of amenity of the area.

- 5 The proposed development has insufficient outdoor amenity space. Such a lack of outdoor amenity space would fail to meet the reasonable amenity needs and may consequently adversely impact the health and wellbeing of future residents, contrary to the provisions of policy ENV3 of the Local Plan 2016-2036 Part One: Planning Strategy.
- 6 To ensure that the proposal may proceed as sustainable development, there is a duty upon the local planning authority to ensure that sufficient mitigation is provided against any impacts which might arise upon the designated sites. The proposal will result in new units of overnight residential accommodation which will potentially have an adverse impact through greater nitrates being discharged into the Solent catchment area thereby having an adverse impact on the integrity of the Solent Special Protection Area (SPA) and Special Areas of Conservation (SAC). A precautionary approach is required to be adopted and in the absence of a completed Section 106 Agreement an adverse impact on the integrity of the SPA and SACs cannot be ruled out. As such, the proposal does not accord with Regulation 63 of the Conservation of Species and Habitats Regulations 2017 in that at present there is inadequate mitigation in place. The proposal is therefore contrary to the provisions of the Conservation of Species and Habitats Regulations 2017, and New Forest Local Plan (2016-2036) Policy ENV1.
- 7 In the absence of a completed S106 Agreement to secure an appropriate contribution towards the provision of off-site affordable housing, the proposed development fails to accord with the provisions of policy HOU2 of the Local Plan 2016-2036 Part One: Planning Strategy for the New Forest District outside the New Forest National Park.

## b Ringwood Town Football and Social Club, Long Lane, Ringwood (Application 21/11170)

## **Details:**

Replacement of the sub-standard pavilion/changing facilities on the site; Construction of a new FTP (Football Turf Pitch) with LED floodlighting; Improved car parking/infrastructure; Change of use of arable to sports use to include improvements to an existing arable field to allow future sports use; appropriate landscaping enhancements

## **Public Participants:**

Andrew Battison, on behalf of the applicant Phil King, Chairman of Ringwood Town Football Club (Supporter)

## **Additional Representations:**

The case officer reported that one additional letter of objection had been received. This had been included in the update note circulated prior to the meeting.

### Comment:

Cllr Ring disclosed a non-pecuniary interest as a member of the Planning Committee of Ringwood Town Council. Cllr Ring reported that he had not expressed a view on the application and therefore concluded there were no grounds under common law to prevent him from remaining in the meeting to speak and to vote.

The case officer reported an additional condition was proposed in relation to contaminated land. This had been included in the update note circulated prior to the meeting.

#### **Decision:**

Grant subject to conditions

### **Conditions / Reasons:**

As per report (Item 3b) and update note

### c 33 Albert Road, New Milton (Application 21/11230)

#### Details:

Variation of condition 5 of 18/10965 to allow tuition 1545-1915 Mon-Fri in term time and 0915-1245 Mon-Fri in school holidays, 0930-1600 on Saturdays and 1:1 tuition outside of these times

### **Public Participants:**

Mrs Wells-Bryant (Applicant) Deborah Slade (Agent) Cllr Alvin Reid, New Milton Town Council

## Additional Representations:

None

#### Comment:

Cllr Hawkins disclosed a non-pecuniary interest as a member of the Planning Committee of New Milton Town Council which had commented on the application. Cllr Hawkins did not participate in the debate or vote on the application but was present during the consideration of the item.

Cllr Ward disclosed a non-pecuniary interest as a member of New Milton Town Council which had commented on the application. She concluded that there were no grounds under common law to prevent her from remaining in the meeting to speak and to vote.

The case officer clarified that the recommendation contained in the report was to grant the variation of condition without the inclusion of 1:1 tuition outside of the proposed tuition times, and therefore there would be no additional hours of operation.

## **Decision:**

Grant the variation of condition

## **Conditions / Reasons:**

As per report (Item 3c)

# d The White House, 1 Forest Lane, Hardley, Fawley (Application 21/11219)

**Details:** 

Two storey rear extension & detached garage

## **Public Participants:**

None

## **Additional Representations:**

None

### Comment:

Cllr Glass disclosed a non-pecuniary interest as a member of Fawley Parish Council which had commented on the application. He concluded that there were no grounds under common law to prevent him from remaining in the meeting to speak and to vote.

A typographical error within section 11 of the report was noted. This had been included in the update note circulated prior to the meeting.

## **Decision:**

Refuse

## **Conditions / Reasons:**

As per report (Item 3d)

CHAIRMAN